
Town of Montreat 
Board of Commissioners 

Meeting Agenda 
February 4, 2016 – 7:00 p.m. 

Walkup Building 
 
 

1 

I. Call to Order 

• Pledge of Allegiance 
• Invocation 

II. Agenda Adoption 

III. Public Hearings 

A. Proposed Revisions to Montreat General Ordinance, Chapter K, Article IV-Hillside 
Development 

B. Proposed Revisions to Montreat Zoning Ordinance, Article VI – General Provisions  
 

IV. Mayor’s Communications 
 

V. Consent Agenda 

A. Meeting Minutes Adoption 

• January 7, 2016, Agenda Meeting  
• January 14, 2016, Town Council Meeting 

 
B.   Audit Committee Member Appointment 
   Suggested Motion:  To reappoint Phillip Arnold to the Audit Committee for a term         

of four years to expire on January 31, 2020. 
 

 
All items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine, to be enacted by one motion with the 
adoption of the agenda and without discussion.  If a member of the governing body requests 
discussion of an item, it will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.
 
VI. Town Administrator’s Communications 

• Consent Agenda Review 
• Other Topics 

 
VII. Administrative Reports 

A. Police Chief  
B. Public Works Director 
C. Finance Officer 
D. Building Inspector/Code Administrator 

Packet Page 1



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Meeting Agenda 

February 4, 2016 
 
 

2 

 

VIII. Public Comment – Agenda Items 

Public comments will be heard during this period for only those items listed on the meeting 
agenda

IX. Old Business 

.   

A. Proposed Revisions to Montreat General Ordinance, Chapter K, Article IV-Hillside 
Development 
• Suggested Motion:  To adopt Ordinance #16-02-0001 amending Montreat 

General Ordinance, Chapter K, Article IV-Hillside Development 

 
B.   Proposed Revisions to Montreat Zoning Ordinance, Article VI – General Provisions 

• Suggested Motion:  To adopt Ordinance #16-02-0002 Amending Montreat 
Zoning Ordinance, Article VI-General Provisions 

 

X. New Business 

A.  Lookout Road Area - Preliminary Utility Service Plan 
• Suggested Motion: To approve a contract for preliminary utility service 

engineering and planning with McGill Associates in the amount of $8,500 and to 
authorize the Mayor and Town Administrator to execute the necessary contract 
documents. 

 
B.  2016-2021 Capital Improvements Plan 

• Suggested Motion: To call for a Public Hearing on March 10, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. 
or as soon thereafter as possible to discuss the proposed 2016-2021 Capital 
Improvements Plan. 

   
C.  Street Name Request – Covenant Lane 

• Suggested Motion:  To approve Convenant Lane as the street name for the 
street extension of Upper Kentucky Road. 

 
XI. Public Comment – Other Topics 

Public comments will be heard during this period for other public business items or topics not 
listed on the meeting agenda

 

.  

Packet Page 2



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Meeting Agenda 

February 4, 2016 
 
 

3 

XII. Commissioner Communications 

XIII. Meeting Dates 
 

 
February Town Council Meeting:  February 11, 2016, 7:00 p.m. 

Walkup Building 
 

 
Agenda Items Due 

 

February 26, 2016 by 5:00 p.m. 
Town Services Office 

March 1, 2016  Agenda Packets Available 
Town Services Office 

 

 
Montreat Landcare March 2, 2016, 9:00 a.m. 

Moore Center Meeting Room 
 

 
March Agenda Meeting March 3, 2016, 7:00 p.m. 

Walkup Building 
 

March 10, 2016 7:00 p.m. March Town Council Meeting 
Walkup Building 

 

XIV.  Closed Session 
• Suggested Motion:  To enter into Closed Session in accordance with North Carolina 

General Statute §143-318.11(3) for attorney consultation regarding the Civil Action:  
Carolyn Zoe Crowder, John L. Currie, Nancy B. Thomas, Henry W. Darden, Jr., and 
wife, Carolyn V. Darden, Plaintiffs, versus the Town of Montreat, Defendant. 
 

XV. Adjournment 
 

Packet Page 3



\\tom-server\datashare\BOC\Board Action Requests\2016 

Requests\REQUEST_MGO_Ch_K_Article_IV_Call_for_Public_Hearing_01142016\Public_Hearing\REQUEST_
MGO_Ch_K_Article_IV_Public_Hearing_02112016.docx 

TOWN OF MONTREAT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Meeting Date:  February 11, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Revisions to Montreat General Ordinance, Chapter K, Article IV – 
Hillside Development 

AGENDA INFORMATION

Agenda Location: Old Business 

: 

Item Number:  A 
Department:  Planning and Zoning 
Contact:  David Currie  
Presenter:  David Currie 

BRIEF SUMMARY:

 

    At your 2015 Annual Board Retreat, you asked staff to have Planning and 
Zoning review the required setbacks listed for various zoning districts. During development of 
the Comprehensive Plan in 2006-2007, there was mention of modifying building setbacks in the 
front and rear yards based upon steeply-sloping conditions of some lots, as well as the 
suggestion of increasing front yard setbacks for properties under development within the 
Assembly Drive Corridor to maintain visual consistency. In keeping with the guidance of the 
Comprehensive Plan, the Hillside Development Ordinance (adopted in 2009) does include 
provisions for administratively reducing the front yard setback of smaller lots within steeply-
sloping areas by as much as 50% for the associated zoning district. At their November meeting, 
P&Z reviewed various setback provisions in our developmental ordinances and submit the 
recommendation you see presented tonight.  

RECOMMENDED MOTION AND REQUESTED ACTIONS: To adopt Ordinance #16-02-0001 
amending Montreat General Ordinance, Chapter K, Article IV – Hillside Development 

FUNDING SOURCE:  None  

ATTACHMENTS:   Proposed revisions to Montreat General Ordinance, Montreat General 
Ordinance, Chapter K, Article IV – Hillside Development 

STAFF COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:   During their review of setback requirements, 
Planning and Zoning members discussed recommendations found in the implementation matrix 
of the Comprehensive Plan. I also provided them with the setback reference found in the 
Hillside Development Ordinance which allows administrative reduction of front setbacks for 
steeply-sloping smaller lots. While their discussion did not generate any recommendations for 
modifying setbacks along Assembly Drive corridor or other existing developed sections of town, 
P&Z members did agree that setback reductions on steeper lots should not be limited based 
upon lot size. If Council wishes to have P&Z reconsider other potential modifications to 
setbacks, I can have them take another look during their next meeting.    

Packet Page 4



\\tom-server\datashare\BOC\Board Action Requests\2016 

Requests\REQUEST_MZO_Article_VI_Call_for_Public_Hearing_01142016\Public_Hearing\REQUEST_MZ
O_Article_VI_Public_Hearing_02112016.docx 

TOWN OF MONTREAT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Meeting Date:  February 11, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Revisions to Montreat Zoning Ordinance, Article VI – General 
Provisions 

AGENDA INFORMATION

Agenda Location: Old Business 

: 

Item Number:  B 
Department:  Planning and Zoning 
Contact:  David Currie  
Presenter:  David Currie 

BRIEF SUMMARY:

 

    The Montreat Zoning Ordinance does provide some accommodation that 
allows persons with disabilities to request modification of the zoning setback(s), enabling 
construction of accessibility features. This change occurred in 2013 in response to a renewed 
awareness of specific requirements under the Federal Fair Housing Act (FFHA) that require 
municipalities to make “reasonable accommodation” in their zoning codes. Earlier this year, a 
case came before the Board of Adjustment that caused us to reconsider if we had gone far 
enough. A property owner requested a variance to allow addition of square footage to an 
existing bathroom for increased accessibility. After reviewing the variance request and other 
case law on the books for similar situations, staff decided that a variance procedure and the 
associated findings is not well-suited to consider modifying provisions of the zoning ordinance 
under the FFHA. It is our belief that a Conditional Use approval process or a similar approach 
better addresses the need to provide reasonable accommodation, since a variance is tied to 
peculiar physical aspects of the property irrespective of the applicant’s condition. 

RECOMMENDED MOTION AND REQUESTED ACTIONS: To adopt Ordinance #16-02-0002 
Amending Montreat Zoning Ordinance, Article VI – General Provisions 

FUNDING SOURCE:  None  

ATTACHMENTS:   Proposed revisions to Montreat General Ordinance, Montreat Zoning 
Ordinance, Article VI – General Provisions 

STAFF COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:   Reasonable accommodation under the FFHA 
can be somewhat of a “moving target” for municipalities. Currently, most of the guidance 
defining this concept is being decided in courtrooms across our nation. After reviewing the 
recent case dispensed by the Board of Adjustment, staff believes that the amendment under 
consideration tonight – while not guaranteeing we will avoid court proceedings – does provide 
generous flexibility to hear these requests and thereby grant persons with disabilities the full 
use of their property as other residents enjoy.    

Packet Page 5



Town of Montreat 
Board of Commissioners 

Town Council Agenda Meeting 
January 7, 2016 

Walkup Building 
  

 

Book 14; Page  

Board members present
Mayor Pro Tem Kitty Fouche 

: Mayor Tim Helms 

Commissioner Bill Gilliland 
Commissioner Mary Standaert 
Commissioner Ann Vinson 

 
Board members absent:
 

 None 

Town staff present
Stefan Stackhouse, Finance Officer & Deputy Town Clerk 

:  Ron Nalley, Town Administrator 

Jack Staggs, Chief of Police 
Steve Freeman, Public Works Director 
Barry Creasman, Senior Water Operator 
David Currie, Building Inspector/Code Administrator 
Angie Murphy, Town Clerk 
 

     
Approximately 18 members of the public were also present.  Mayor Helms called the meeting to 
order at 7:00 p.m., and led the group in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance and in prayer. 
 

 
Agenda Approval 

Mayor Helms welcomed everyone to the meeting and asked if there were any changes to the 
agenda.  Commissioner Standaert requested Staff contact Matt Ashley about attending a future 
meeting to provide an update on the Metropolitan Sewerage District Board.  Commissioner Vinson 
pointed out a minor typographical error in the December 3, 2015 minutes. 
 

 
Mayor’s Communications 

Mayor Helms again welcomed Commissioner Fouche and Commissioner Gilliland and thanked Mr. 
Nalley for assisting them with some basic orientation. 
 

 
Consent Agenda Review 

The proposed Consent Agenda will include the following items: 
 
• December 3, 2015, Agenda Meeting  
• December 10, 2015, Town Council Meeting  
• Re-appointment of Matt Ashley to the Metropolitan Sewerage District Board for a term of 

three years to expire on January 20, 2019 

Packet Page 6



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Agenda Meeting Minutes 

January 7, 2016 
 

 

Book 14; Page  

• Mr. Nalley reminded everyone that the Board Retreat will be held on February 8, 2016 at the 
Manor House in Black Mountain. 

Town Administrator’s Communications 

• Mr. Nalley reminded the Council to bring their calendars in anticipation of scheduling his 
Annual Performance Review which occurs in January.  He advised that members of the 
previous Council, former Mayor Taylor, Commissioner Campbell and Commissioner McCaskill, 
would be invited to participate since they worked with him during the previous year but the 
new Council were also welcome and encouraged to sit in on the review process.   

• Mr. Nalley stated that there have been problems with the Council Ipad’s and suggested that if 
anyone needed help to bring them by the Town Services Building.   

• Mr. Nalley also requested that the Council come prepared at the next meeting for a new photo 
for the Town website. 

• In response to a question from Commissioner Vinson, Mr. Nalley will provide an update on the 
two newly named roads at their next meeting. 

 
Administrative Reports 

The Board will hear administrative reports from the Police Chief, Public Works Director, Finance 
Officer and Building Inspector/Code Administrator during next week’s Town Council meeting.   
 

 
Public Comment – Agenda Items 

Mayor Helms reiterated that this Public Comment period was intended for remarks pertaining to 
items listed on the meeting agenda, including staff reports and communications.   
 
There were no comments from the public at this time. 

 

 
Old Business 

There were no matters under Old Business scheduled for discussion. 
 

 
New Business 

A. Proposed Revisions to Montreat General Ordinance, Chapter K, Article IV-Hillside Development, 
Section II:  Mayor Helms requested that Mr. Currie give the Board a brief explanation about the 
proposed steep slope provisions.  Mr. Curry stated that at the 2015 Annual Board Retreat, the 
Board asked staff to have the Planning and Zoning Commission review the required setbacks 
listed for various zoning districts. During development of the Comprehensive Plan in 2006-

Packet Page 7



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Agenda Meeting Minutes 

January 7, 2016 
 

 

Book 14; Page  

2007, there was mention of modifying building setbacks in the front and rear yards based upon 
steeply-sloping conditions of some lots, as well as the suggestion of increasing front yard 
setbacks for properties under development within the Assembly Drive Corridor to maintain 
visual consistency. In keeping with the guidance of the Comprehensive Plan, the Hillside 
Development Ordinance (adopted in 2009) does include provisions for administratively 
reducing the front yard setback of smaller lots within steeply sloping areas by as much as 50% 
for the associated zoning district. At their November meeting, the Planning & Zoning 
Committee reviewed various setback provisions in the developmental ordinances and 
submitted the recommendation presented tonight. 
 

B.  Proposed Revisions to Montreat Zoning Ordinance Article VI-General Provisions, Section 612-
4-Reasonable Accommodations: 

 

  Mayor Helms asked Mr. Currie to give a brief explanation 
about the Federal Fair Housing Act. Mr. Currie stated that the Federal Fair Housing Act requires 
that municipalities make reasonable accommodations in their development and zoning codes 
to provide persons with disabilities the option of using their properties in the same way as 
people with non-disabilities.  The Montreat Zoning Ordinance does provide some 
accommodation that allows persons with disabilities to request modification of the zoning 
setback(s), enabling construction of accessibility features. This change occurred in 2013 in 
response to a renewed awareness of specific requirements under the Federal Fair Housing Act 
(FFHA).   Earlier this year, a case came before the Board of Adjustment that questioned 
whether the Town had gone far enough. A property owner requested a variance to allow 
additional square footage to an existing bathroom for increased accessibility. After reviewing 
the variance request and other case law  for similar situations, staff decided that a variance 
procedure and the associated findings is not well-suited to consider modifying provisions of 
the zoning ordinance under the FFHA. It is Staff’s belief that a Conditional Use approval process 
or a similar approach better addresses the need to provide reasonable accommodation, since a 
variance is tied to particular physical aspects of the property irrespective of the applicant’s 
condition.  Commissioner Standaert recommended that members of the Planning and Zoning 
Committee be invited to the meeting to share their thoughts on this matter and to give them 
an opportunity to ask questions during the Public Comment portion of the meeting.   

C. Appoint a Primary Delegate and an Alternate Delegate to the Land of Sky Regional Council:  

 

  In 
response to a question from Commissioner Standaert, Mr. Nalley stated that the Land of Sky 
Regional Council preferred that the delegate be an elected official. 

D. Town Services Building Roof Repair:

 

  Mr. Nalley explained that the roof at the Town Services 
Building has developed a bad leak, and while patched several times, is at the point where a 
new roof is needed.  Mr. Nalley advised that the bid in question is only for roof repair and not 
for ceiling/carpet repair or mold removal.   

E. Vacancy on Town Council:  Commissioner Vinson referenced Rule Number 30 in the Council’s 
Rules and Procedures which states the Council needs to nominate, debate and appoint a 

Packet Page 8



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Agenda Meeting Minutes 

January 7, 2016 
 

 

Book 14; Page  

replacement for the vacant seat on the Board and feels that the wording on the suggested 
motion needs to be changed to reflect the procedures in place.  Mr. Nalley advised that there 
isn’t a specific method for filling a vacant seat in State statutes and that it is normally up to the 
discretion of the Board.  Commissioner Vinson stated that she would like to include the 
verbiage “nominate” so members of the community who are interested can apply and have an 
opportunity to serve.  Commissioner Standaert asked about past instances regarding vacancies 
on the Council.  Mr. Nalley advised that at least in one instance applications were taken from 
the community and then voted upon.  Commissioner Standaert recommended using the 
current general Board application form and putting it out there for the community at large 
with a time limit to return the forms for the Board to review.  Mr. Nalley stated that there are 
two methods normally used to choose from the applications:  motion/vote and 
nomination/ballot.  After general discussion Commissioner Vinson moved to use the 
nominate/ballot method. Commissioner Standaert seconded and the motion carried 3/1 with 
Mayor Pro Tem Fouche voting against the motion.   Forms will be made available on the Town 
website and at the Town Services Building. 

 
Public Comment – Other Topics 

Mayor Helms reiterated that this Public Comment period was intended for remarks pertaining to 
public business items not listed on the meeting agenda, including any reports or communications 
from other community entities.     
 
Philip Arnold of 530 Magill Drive implored the new Council to do better than the US Congress.  He 
asked the Council to listen to their conscious, utilize judgment, and do their homework with 
regards to decisions made on behalf of Montreat.    
 

 
Commissioner Communications 

There were no Commissioner Communications at this time. 
 

 
Upcoming Meeting Dates 

Mayor Helms will review the following list of upcoming meeting dates and deadlines next week.   
 

 
January Town Council Meeting: January 14, 2016, 7:00 p.m. 

Walkup Building 
 

 
Town Services Office Closed: January 18, 2016 

Martin Luther King, Jr Holiday 
 

 
Agenda Items Due: January 29, 2016 by 5:00 p.m. 

Town Services Office 
 

Packet Page 9



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Agenda Meeting Minutes 

January 7, 2016 
 

 

Book 14; Page  

 
Landcare Committee Meeting: February 2, 2016 

Town Services Office 
 

February 4, 2016, 7:00 p.m. February Agenda Meeting: 
Walkup Building 

February 11, 2016, 7:00 p.m. February Town Council Meeting: 
Walkup Building 

 

 
Closed Session 

Commissioner Vinson moved to enter into Closed Session in accordance with North Carolina 
General Statute §143-318.11(3) for attorney consultation regarding the Civil Action: Carolyn Zoe 
Crowder, John L. Currie, Nancy B. Thomas, Henry W. Darden, Jr., and wife, Carolyn V. Darden, 
Plaintiffs, versus the Town of Montreat, Defendant.  Commissioner Fouche seconded and the 
motion carried 4/0. 
 
Upon a motion by Commissioner Vinson and a second by Commissioner Gilliland with the motion 
carrying 4/0, the Board returned to Open Session at 8:28 p.m. No action was taken during the 
Closed Session.  
 

 
Adjournment 

Upon returning to open session, Commissioner Gilliland moved to adjourn the Agenda Meeting. 
Commissioner Vinson seconded and the motion carried 4/0.  The meeting was adjourned at 8:29 
p.m.  
 
 
 
   

Tim Helms, Mayor   Angie Murphy, Town Clerk 

 

Packet Page 10



Town of Montreat 
Board of Commissioners 

Town Council Meeting 
January 14, 2016 
Walkup Building 

 

Book 14; Page 

 
Board members present

Mayor Pro Tem Kitty Fouche 
: Mayor Tim Helms 

Commissioner Mary Standaert 
Commissioner Ann Vinson 
Commissioner Bill Gilliland 
 

Board members absent:
 

 None 

Town staff present
Stefan Stackhouse, Finance Officer & Deputy Town Clerk 

:  Ron Nalley, Town Administrator 

Steve Freeman, Public Works Director 
Barry Creasman, Senior Water Operator 
Chief Jack Staggs, Chief of Police 
Angie Murphy, Town Clerk 
David Currie, Code Administrator/Building Inspector 

     
Approximately 44 members of the public were also present.  Mayor Helms called the meeting to 
order at 7:00 p.m., led the group in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance, and held a moment of 
silence.   
 

 
Agenda Approval 

Mayor Helms asked if there were any changes to the agenda.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche moved that 
the person to be selected to fill the Vacancy on Town Council must be selected by a majority vote, 
and if the first ballot does not result in a majority, that the selection process be changed to the 
motion and vote method with the Mayor to vote in case of a tie.  Commissioner Gilliland seconded 
the motion.  Commissioner Standaert moved to amend the motion to hold at least three votes 
with the majority carrying.  Commissioner Vinson seconded the amendment.  Commissioner 
Vinson and Commissioner Standaert voted for the amendment.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche and 
Commissioner Gilliland voted against the amended motion.  Mayor Helms announced that the 
vote was 2/2 and as Mayor he was voting against the amendment.  The motion to amend failed 
2/3 with Mayor Helms, Mayor Pro Tem Fouche and Commissioner Gilliland voting against the 
motion.  Mayor Helms then returned to the original motion and the motion carried 3/1 with 
Commissioner Standaert voting against the motion.  Commissioner Gilliland then moved that the 
selection of the new Commissioner be moved to the beginning of the agenda. Mayor Pro Tem 
Fouche seconded the motion.  During discussion, Mr. Nalley reminded the Board that the order of 
the agenda is established in their Rules of Procedure. Commissioner Gilliland amended his motion 
and moved that the selection process be moved to the first item under New Business.  
Commissioner Vinson seconded and the amendment carried 4/0.  Mr. Nalley then requested that 
the Closed Session be removed from the agenda.  Commissioner Vinson moved to remove the 

Packet Page 11



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2016 
 

 

Book 14; Page 

Closed Session from the agenda.  Commissioner Gilliland seconded and the motion carried 3/1 
with Commissioner Standaert voting against the motion.  Commissioner Vinson then moved to 
adopt the agenda as amended.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche seconded and the motion carried 3/1 with 
Commissioner Standaert voting against the motion. 
 

 
Presentation to Council 

Metropolitan Sewerage District Update:

 
The District owns, operates and maintains a 40 million gallon per day (MGD) wastewater 
treatment plant to treat raw sewage and industrial wastewaters collected in an extensive network  
of collector sewers currently owned, operated and maintained by the District .   The District also 
owns, operates and maintains approximately 60 miles of interceptor sewers that connect such 
sewers to the treatment plant. 

  Matt Ashley, Montreat’s Representative to the 
Metropolitan Sewerage District (MSD) Board presented an overview of the scope of MSD’s 
operations and what it means to the Town.   MSD was created and established in 1962 for the 
purpose of constructing and operating facilities for the treatment and disposal of the sewage 
generated by the political subdivisions comprising the District. MSD is a non-profit, publicly-owned 
utility.   The District Board consists of twelve members. Three from the County of Buncombe, three 
from the City of Asheville, one from Woodfin Sanitary Water & Sewer District, and one each from 
the Towns of Biltmore Forest, Black Mountain, Montreat, Weaverville and Woodfin.  

 
In the presentation Mr. Ashley discussed MSD’s Capital Improvement Plan and in response to a 
question from Commissioner Standaert pointed out that there is a projected 2.5% increase on 
sewerage rates per year for the next ten years.  Mr. Ashley stated that meetings are open to the 
public with times and locations listed on the Metropolitan Sewerage District website. 
 
2016-2021 Capital Improvement Plan Overview:

 

  Mr. Nalley gave a brief introductory presentation 
on the 2016-2021 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), a flexible financial planning tool used to 
forecast the Town’s future equipment, building and infrastructure needs.  Items included in the 
CIP generally have both a monetary value greater than $5,000 and a useful life expectancy greater 
than one year.  The presentation also included information on how each project or expenditure is 
prioritized on both the departmental and organizational levels, as well as how CIP information is 
used to develop the annual Budget for the upcoming fiscal year.  Staff will present a completed 
draft CIP at the February Town Council Meeting, which will also be available in print and electronic 
formats for public review and comment.  The final Plan will be eligible for adoption following a 
Public Hearing during the March or April Town Council Meeting.   

 
 

 
 

Packet Page 12



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2016 
 

 

Book 14; Page 

 

 
Mayor’s Communications 

Mayor Helms announced that there would be no sanitation services on Monday, January 18, 2016 
due to the Martin Luther King Jr. Holiday but will resume on the following day.  He also advised 
that the Town sanitation truck is currently out of service so the Public Works Department will be 
using pickup trucks to collect the refuse. 

 

 
Consent Agenda Review 

With the adoption of the Consent Agenda, the Board approved the following items:  
• December 3, 2015 Agenda Meeting Minutes  
• December 10, 2015 Town Council Meeting Minutes 
• Re-appointed Matt Ashley as the Town of Montreat’s Representative to the Metropolitan 

Sewerage District Board for a term of three years to expire on January 20, 2019 
 

 

 
Town Administrator’s Communications 

• Mr. Nalley reminded the Council that the Annual Board Retreat will be held on February 8, 
2016 at the Manor House in Black Mountain.  Agenda Packets will be distributed by February 
1st.   

• Mr. Nalley also asked the Council to provide potential dates for a Special Meeting to conduct 
the Town Administrator’s annual performance review.  Following discussion, the Board set a 
Special Meeting for January 29, 2016 at 11:00 a.m. in the Town Services Building. 

•  Mr. Nalley stated that Montreat has had a street naming process in place for many years with 
names being historically taken from the names Synods and Presbyteries.  Buncombe County 
passed an Ordinance that states if a street name is already in use somewhere else in the 
County that it will not be allowed as a new street name.  For example, last year Whitewater 
Cove Road and New Hope Lane were chosen as new street names in Montreat; while 
Whitewater Cove Road was accepted, New Hope Lane already existed elsewhere in the County 
and was rejected.  Mr. Nalley suggested that the Board perhaps consider reserving street 
names from the list attached in the packets.  This topic will be brought back before Council in 
February to decide on a new name for New Hope Lane. 
 
    

 
Administrative Reports 

Police:  Chief Staggs reviewed and presented the December 2015 monthly departmental activity 
report.  He stated that December was a very busy month for visitors to Montreat due to the warm 

Packet Page 13



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2016 
 

 

Book 14; Page 

temperatures and increased rentals in the area.  All Montreat police and reserve officers have 
completed their mandatory classes and training for the year. 
 
Public Works Director
• Mr. Freeman reiterated that sanitation services will not run on Monday, January 18 due to the 

Martin Luther King Jr Holiday, but will resume a normal schedule on Tuesday, January 19.  Mr. 
Freeman advised that once estimates are received for the repair of the sanitation truck it will 
be presented to Council. 

:   

• A large tree fell at the top of Appalachian Way and brought down a power line which damaged 
the roof of the radio building.  This topic will also be brought back before Council once 
estimates are in place for repairs. 

•  There has been an increase in wet weather springs on Missouri Road, West Virginia Terrace, 
South Carolina Terrace and Louisiana Road and Mr. Freeman advised using caution on cold 
days in these areas.   

• Kimberly Powers, Environmental Engineer/Inspector with the Public Water Supply Section of 
the Division of Water Resources, completed her inspection at the beginning of January and 
found no problems with Montreat’s water system. 

 
Finance Officer
 

:  Mr. Stackhouse presented and reviewed the following monthly reports: 

• November 2015 Financial Summary Report; 
• Final November 2015 Detailed Financial Statement; 
• Preliminary December 2015 Detailed Financial Statement; 
• December 31, 2015 Cash and Investment Earnings Report; 
• Year-to-Date Legal Fees Report with regards to the lawsuit:  $69,992  
• Year-to-Date Expenditures with regards to the Town Hall Project:  $383,804 
 
Building Inspector/Code Administrator

 

:  Mr. Currie presented and reviewed his December 2015 
zoning and inspections activity report.  The Planning and Zoning Commission and the Board of 
Adjustment did not meet last month.  At the request of Commissioner Standaert, Mr. Currie gave 
the Council an update on an ongoing construction project on Texas Spur.  Mr. Currie advised that a 
notice of violation has been issued to the property owner.  The violation addresses safety as well 
as unsightliness.   The property owner has assured Mr. Currie that she intends to either move 
forward with developing the site or demolishing the foundation.  Mr. Currie also reported that the 
Town has been invited by Advanced Energy in conjunction with Land of the Sky Regional Council to 
participate in Plug-In NC.  Plug-In NC will use websites and links to educate people about 
Montreat’s electric vehicle charging station near the College.    

 
Public Comments

 
  

Packet Page 14



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2016 
 

 

Book 14; Page 

Mayor Helms reiterated that this Public Comment period was intended for remarks pertaining to 
items listed on the meeting agenda, including staff reports and communications. 
 
Mr. Wade Burns of 232 North Carolina Terrace suggested making the dumpster available for the 
residents of the Town to bring their own trash on the Tuesday after Martin Luther King Jr. Holiday 
thereby reducing the workload for the Public Works Department.  Mr. Burns also would like his 
previously submitted report on the annexation of Upper Greybeard to be revisited.  
 

 
Old Business 

There were no items of Old Business to discuss at this time. 
 

 
New Business 

 
A. Vacancy on Town Council:

 

  Mayor Helms suggested, in accordance with North Carolina General 
Statutes, that written ballots be signed by each Commissioner and that the Minutes reflect the 
vote of each Commissioner.  These ballots will be available in the Town Clerk’s Office for public 
review until the Minutes are reviewed and then the ballots can be destroyed.  Each 
Commissioner will have one vote since there is one vacancy and the Mayor will read the vote 
aloud and pass the ballot to the Town Clerk.  The following candidates were asked to stand and 
briefly introduce themselves: John Hinkle, Eric Nichols and Kent Otto.  Commissioner Standaert 
thanked each candidate for taking the time to come forward to serve and expressed that all 
three are excellent candidates.  Ballots were distributed to the Board members.  The following 
ballots were cast:  Commissioner Gilliland and Mayor Pro Tem Fouche voted in favor of Kent 
Otto while Commissioner Vinson and Commissioner Standaert voted in favor of Eric Nichols.  
The results were a tie.  According to the earlier motion, the Board moved to a motion and vote 
method to break the tie.  Commissioner Bill Gilliland moved to appoint Kent Otto as 
Commissioner to fill the vacant seat on the Council.  Commissioner Standaert seconded and the 
motion carried 4/0.  Town Clerk Angie Murphy then administered the Oath of Office to 
Commissioner Kent Otto.   

B. Proposed Revisions to Montreat General Ordinance, Chapter K, Article IV-Hillside Development, 
Section II:

 

    Commissioner Ann Vinson called for a Public Hearing on February 11, 2016 at 7:00 
p.m. or as soon thereafter as possible to discuss proposed revisions to Montreat General 
Ordinance, Chapter K, Article IV-Hillside Development.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche seconded and 
the motion carried 5/0. 

C. Proposed Revisions to Montreat Zoning Ordinance Article VI-General Provisions, Section 612.4-
Reasonable Accommodations: Commissioner Ann Vinson called for a Public Hearing on 
February 11, 2016 at 7:15 p.m. or as soon thereafter as possible to discuss proposed revisions 

Packet Page 15



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2016 
 

 

Book 14; Page 

to Montreat Zoning Ordinance Article VI-General Provisions.  Commissioner Gilliland seconded 
and the motion carried 5/0. 

 
D. Appoint a Primary Delegate and an Alternate Delegate to the Land of Sky Regional Council:  

 

Commissioner Standaert moved to appoint Mayor Tim Helms as Primary Delegate to the Land 
of Sky Regional Council and to appoint Commissioner Bill Gilliland as Alternate Delegate to the 
Land of Sky Regional Council.  Commissioner Vinson seconded and the motion passed 5/0. 

E. Town Services Building Roof Repair:

 

 Mayor Pro Tem Fouche moved to approve the Bid 
Proposal from The Bonitz Company of Carolina-Tennessee, Inc. in the amount of $7,625.00 and 
to authorize the Mayor and Town Administrator to execute the necessary contract documents.  
Commissioner Vinson seconded and the motion carried 5/0. 

 
Public Comments-Other Topics 

Mayor Helms reiterated that the Public Comment period were for remarks pertaining to public 
business items not listed on the meeting agenda, including any reports or communications from 
other community entities. 
 
Annie Carlson of 116 West College St in Black Mountain, representing Montreat College, wanted 
to thank everyone for their support of the College.  She reported that a successful event  was held 
at the College that included members of the College, Town of Montreat, Town of Black Mountain, 
Buncombe County EMS and Sheriff’s Department, churches, and teachers that focused on what to 
do during a Crisis Situation.  

 

 
Commissioner Communications 

Commissioner Ann Vinson gave a brief update of the most recent Montreat Landcare Committee 
Meeting and the collaborations between the college students and the residents of the community.  
She also mentioned that the Tree Board will hopefully be holding an organizational meeting by the 
end of the month. 
 
Commissioner Standaert stated that she looks forward to working with the current Council. 
 

 
Upcoming Meeting Dates 

Mayor Helms reviewed the following list of upcoming meeting dates and deadlines:  
 

  January 29, 2016 by 5:00 p.m. Agenda Items Due: 
Town Services Office 

 

Packet Page 16



Montreat Board of Commissioners 
Town Council Meeting Minutes 

January 14, 2016 
 

 

Book 14; Page 

February 2, 2016 Agenda Packets Available 
Town Services Office 

 
February 3, 2016 9:00 a.m. Landcare Committee Meeting: 

Moore Center Meeting Room 
 
 

February 4, 2016, 7:00 p.m. February Agenda Meeting 
Walkup Building 

 

 
February Town Council Meeting February 11, 2016, 7:00 p.m. 

Walkup Building 
 

February 8, 2016 9:00 a.m. 2016 Annual Board Retreat 
Manor House 

       
 
 

 
Adjournment 

There being no further business, Commissioner Vinson moved to adjourn the Town Council 
Meeting. Commissioner Gilliland seconded and the motion carried 5/0.  The meeting was 
adjourned at 8:36 p.m.  
 
 
   

Tim Helms, Mayor  Angela Murphy, Town Clerk 

 

Packet Page 17



C:\Users\mgedlinske\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 
Files\Content.Outlook\YJ6NZ12M\REQUEST_Reappt_Arnold_to_Audit_Committee_02112016.docx 

TOWN OF MONTREAT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Meeting Date:   February 11, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Audit Committee Member Appointment  

AGENDA INFORMATION
 

: 

Agenda Location:  Consent Agenda 
Item Number:   B 
Department:   Administration 
Contact:   Stefan Stackhouse, Finance Officer 
Presenter:   Ron Nalley, Town Administrator 

BRIEF SUMMARY: The Audit Committee terms of Phillip Arnold and Bill Hollins have expired.      
Mr. Hollins has indicated that he will not be available to serve another term, but Mr. Arnold has 
expressed a willingness to continue to serve.  While we are seeking another person from the 
community to fill the vacancy left by Mr. Hollins, it is requested that the Board reappoint Mr. 
Arnold at this time so that the Audit Committee can proceed with its work. 

RECOMMENDED MOTION AND REQUESTED ACTIONS: To reappoint Phillip Arnold to the 
Audit Committee for a term of four years to expire on January 31, 2020. 

FUNDING SOURCE
 

:  Not Applicable 

ATTACHMENTS:  None  

STAFF COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

 

:  None          

 

Packet Page 18



 
MONTHLY POLICE STATISTICS REPORT 

January 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

Mileage 3308 3025 2638 3245 3067 
Dispatched Calls 101 107 129 93 65 

Officer-Initiated Calls 216 221 255 157 277 
Fire/EMS Assistance Calls 9F,4E 6F,4E 2F,1E 5 3 

Motorist/Other Assistance Calls 86 52 72 29 32 
Traffic Stops 26 48 38 28 29 

Parking Issues 9 4 4 8 16 
Burglar/Fire Alarm Responses 2B,3F 8B,1F 2B 3F 0 
Residential/Building Checks 225 234 140 94 560 

Ordinance violations 6 10 14 19 11 
LE Agency Assistance Calls 12 22 19 12 42 

Animal Calls 2 2 2 3 2 
Larcenies 2 1 0 1 0 
B&E Calls 1 0 0 0 0 

Suspicious Person/Vehicle Investigations 4P,15V 14P,23V 6P,14V 11P,17V 20 
Disturbance Calls 3 3 1 0 3 

Accident Responses 3 1 3 0 2 
Auxiliary Hours Worked 32R,12T 32R,8T 32R 32R,98O 104 

Truck turns at gate 0 2 1 3 6 
 

• Town service: 417 
• MRA service: 121 
• College service: 23 
• On 01/05/2016, MD Officer Comrie received a thank you letter for her outstanding help on 

Christmas Eve reference an accident she worked from a Mrs. Phillips of Black Mountain. 
• On 01/07/2016, MPD received a call of a domestic, a fight, and damage to property on Assembly 

Drive.  This was college students renting.  All issues were resolved. 
• On 01/09/2016, MPD received a box full of pastries from 531 Magill as a thank you for a security 

check.  All of the Town Staff enjoyed. 
• On 01/10/2016, MPD and Town Staff located a subject behind Town Hall that had fell on trail 

and broken her arm.  EMS was called and subject was transported. 
• On 01/14/2016, MPD received a thank you letter from a resident at North Carolina Terrace for an 

emergency assistance.  This letter contained a gift card for Ingles and will be used to wash patrol 
cars.  On this same date, Officer Whitson did a demonstration for the Montreat Morning School.  
He outdid the Chief, who did it last year, providing cupcakes over candy. 

• On 01/17/2016, MPD received a call of a larceny of golf clubs out of a garage on Kanawha.  
Investigation continues.  Also on this date, MPD answered a domestic dispute which was 
resolved. 

• On 01/20/2016, MPD responded to 3 accidents (1 reportable and 2 declined), 10 rescues, 6 escorts 
to residences due to the snow.  I would like to especially thank the Street Department for their 
assistance with the rescues and escorts, we could not have operated without them. 

Packet Page 19



• On 01/21/2016, MPD located an elderly white female with dementia.  She was picked up by her 
husband. 

• On 01/22-24/2016, BIG SNOW!  MPD did a total of 17 assists, rescues and escorts.  Along with 
the Street Department, we located trees down on Westminster, Mississippi, and John Knox.  
Owners were notified if possible.  Also on 01/24 at 5:30 a.m. MPD received a call from a resident 
reference suspicious activity on West Virginia.  A subject was engaged and arrested for B&E and 
larceny from a motor vehicle.  The vehicle was towed and stored for inventory.  During the 
inventory items were found matching a $1200 report of missing property from Ridgecrest.  BCSD 
was called in to recover that property and an additional felony for B&E and larceny from a motor 
vehicle was taken out, and the owner of the vehicle took out unauthorized use of motor vehicle 
and damage to property warrants.   Investigation continues, there are several items for which the 
owner/victim needs to be identified. 

• On 01/27/2016, MPD investigated a call reference a tree on a house on Frisk Road.  Owner was 
notified. 

• On 01/31/2016, MPD received a call in reference to lost hikers on Lookout.  Subject were located 
walking on Assembly Drive. 

Packet Page 20



                                      General Fund

                                            Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

                                                                        For the Period Ended December, 2015  

4 FYE 2016 Previously Current FYE 2016 FYE 15 Comparison FYE 2016

Actual to 

Budget %

Statement 

Period Variance 12/31/14

Budgeted Reported Month YTD Actual YTD Actual  Remaining Budget 6

Revenues:

Ad valorem taxes 952,500.00$          288,078.86$          323,954.75$          612,033.61$          334,091.40$            340,466.39$          

Other taxes and licenses 357,400.00$          104,191.22$          33,153.54$            137,344.76$          122,461.04$            220,055.24$          

Unrestricted intergovernmental 60,500.00$            118.49$                 28,433.14$            28,551.63$            23,981.09$              31,948.37$            

Permits and Fees 46,000.00$            15,381.74$            5,601.00$              20,982.74$            12,851.31$              25,017.26$            

Community Service Fee 50,000.00$            40,762.80$            -$                      40,762.80$            41,075.00$              9,237.20$              

Sales and Services 13,000.00$            4,564.81$              1,401.86$              5,966.67$              3,343.72$                7,033.33$              

Investment earnings 2,200.00$              380.70$                 100.40$                 481.10$                 424.67$                   1,718.90$              

Other revenues 23,718.00$            11,593.20$            (0.00)$                   11,593.20$            740.38$                   12,124.80$            

Subtotal - Normal Operating 1,505,318.00$       465,071.82$          392,644.69$          857,716.51$          538,968.61$            647,601.49$          56.98% 50.00% 6.98% -13.65%

Restricted intergovernmental 740,000.00$         136,017.36$         20,070.60$           156,087.96$         19,721.16$              583,912.04$         

Contributions - Landcare 10,000.00$           14,100.00$           -$                      14,100.00$           -$                        (4,100.00)$            

Contributions - Open Space -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                        -$                      

Total Revenues 2,255,318.00         615,189.18            412,715.29            1,027,904.47         558,689.77$            1,227,413.53         45.58% 50.00% -4.42% -26.08%

Expenditures:

Governing Body 104,700.00$          42,303.12$            13,777.39$            56,080.51$            18,298.31$              48,619.49$            53.56% 50.00% -3.56% 23.06%

Administration 282,800.00$          99,663.50$            33,518.19$            133,181.69$          147,129.02$            149,618.31$          47.09% 50.00% 2.91% -2.68%

Public Buildings 139,950.00$          34,415.72$            1,157.00$              35,572.72$            155,497.10$            104,377.28$          25.42% 50.00% 24.58% -18.79%

Police 378,943.00$          167,746.01$          41,325.27$            209,071.28$          181,598.91$            169,871.72$          55.17% 50.00% -5.17% 2.57%

Building & Zoning 82,200.00$            31,724.43$            7,857.61$              39,582.04$            35,712.02$              42,617.96$            48.15% 50.00% 1.85% 2.95%

Public Works 86,100.00$            29,768.64$            8,707.60$              38,476.24$            34,842.72$              47,623.76$            44.69% 50.00% 5.31% 2.78%

Streets 1,271,400.00$       138,307.22$          19,686.68$            157,993.90$          179,630.74$            1,113,406.10$       12.43% 50.00% 37.57% 37.59%

Powell Bill 56,000.00$            2,568.64$              -$                      2,568.64$              3,828.20$                53,431.36$            4.59% 50.00% 45.41% 41.20%

Sanitation 113,600.00$          42,115.85$            9,115.01$              51,230.86$            49,546.10$              62,369.14$            45.10% 50.00% 4.90% -1.64%

Env/Cons/Rec 28,500.00$            5,760.26$              3,542.71$              9,302.97$              -$                        19,197.03$            32.64% 50.00% 17.36% 50.00%

Total expenditures 2,544,193.00         594,373.39$          138,687.46$          733,060.85$          806,083.12$            1,811,132.15$       28.81% 50.00% 21.19% 20.15%

Revenues over expenditures (288,875.00)           20,815.79$            274,027.83$          294,843.62$          (247,393.35)$          (583,718.62)$         

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfer to/from Water Fund -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                        -$                       

Fund Balance Appropriated: 288,875.00$          -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                        288,875.00$          

Total other financing sources (uses) 288,875.00$          -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                        288,875.00$          

Revenues and other sources over

  expenditures and other uses -$                       20,815.79$            274,027.83$          294,843.62$          (247,393.35)$          (294,843.62)$         

Expenditure Recap:

Salaries & Benefits 922,400.00$          376,989.86$          100,156.79$          477,146.65$          460,243.63$            445,253.35$          

Other Operating 405,318.00$          153,485.20$          38,430.67$            191,915.87$          143,549.74$            213,402.13$          

CIP/Grant Projects 1,216,475.00$      63,898.33$           100.00$                 63,998.33$           202,289.75$            1,152,476.67$      

Total Expenditures 2,544,193.00$       594,373.39$          138,687.46$          733,060.85$          806,083.12$            1,811,132.15$       

Packet Page 21



                                      Water Fund

                                            Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

                                                                        For the Period Ended December, 2015  
                                                                        

FYE 2016 Previously Current FYE 2016 FYE 15 Comparison FYE 2016

Actual to 

Budget 

Percent

Statement 

Period Variance 12/31/14

Budgeted Reported Month YTD Actual YTD Actual  Remaining Budget 6

Revenues:

Ad valorem taxes -$                      -$                       

Other taxes and licenses -$                       64,800.06$            5,498.65$              70,298.71$            (70,298.71)$           

MRA Comm Svc Fee -$                       -$                      -$                       

Permits and Fees -$                      -$                       

Sales and Services 300,000.00$          135,862.91$          22,139.80$            158,002.71$          149,763.08$            141,997.29$          

Investment earnings 500.00$                 33.12$                   7.37$                     40.49$                   34.54$                     459.51$                 

Other revenues 26,500.00$            13,961.03$            6,620.87$              20,581.90$            16,808.04$              5,918.10$              

Subtotal - Normal Operating 327,000.00$          214,657.12$          34,266.69$            248,923.81$          166,605.66$            78,076.19$            

Restricted intergovernmental -$                      -$                      

Total revenues 327,000.00$          214,657.12$          34,266.69$            248,923.81$          166,605.66$            78,076.19$            76.12% 50.00% 26.12% -19.09%

Expenditures:

Water Department 327,000.00$          69,624.92$            2,758.90$              72,383.82$            77,895.52$              254,616.18$          22.14% 50.00% 27.86% 35.55%

Total expenditures 327,000.00$          69,624.92$            2,758.90$              72,383.82$            77,895.52$              254,616.18$          22.14% 50.00% 27.86% 35.55%

Revenues over expenditures -$                       145,032.20$          31,507.79$            176,539.99$          88,710.14$              (176,539.99)$         

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers to/from General Fund -$                       -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                        -$                       

Fund Balance Appropriated: -$                       -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                        -$                       

Total other financing sources (uses) -$                       -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                        -$                       

Revenues and other sources over

  expenditures and other uses -$                       145,032.20$          31,507.79$            176,539.99$          88,710.14$              (176,539.99)$         

Expenditure Recap:

Salaries & Benefits -$                       -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                       

Other Operating 327,000.00$          69,624.92$            2,758.90$              72,383.82$            77,595.52$              254,616.18$          

CIP/Grant Projects -$                      -$                      -$                      300.00$                   -$                      

Total Expenditures 327,000.00$          69,624.92$            2,758.90$              72,383.82$            77,895.52$              254,616.18$          

Packet Page 22



Packet Page 23



Packet Page 24



Packet Page 25



Packet Page 26



Packet Page 27



Packet Page 28



Packet Page 29



Packet Page 30



Packet Page 31



Packet Page 32



Packet Page 33



Packet Page 34



Packet Page 35



Packet Page 36



Packet Page 37



Packet Page 38



Packet Page 39



Packet Page 40



Packet Page 41



Packet Page 42



Packet Page 43



Packet Page 44



 
TOWN OF MONTREAT 

 

P. O. Box 423 
Montreat, NC 28757 

Tel: (828)669-8002   Fax: (828)669-3810 
www.townofmontreat.org 

 
ORDINANCE 16-02-0001 AMENDING MONTREAT GENERAL ORDINANCE 

CHAPTER K – ENVIRONMENT, ARTICLE IV:  HILLSIDE DEVELOPMENT 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Montreat General Ordinances were adopted by the Board of 
Commissioners of the Town of Montreat, North Carolina on May 13, 1999 and amended on 
several occasions since the date of their adoption; and  
 

WHEREAS, Montreat General Ordinance Chapter K – Environment, Article IV:  Hillside 
Development was adopted by the Board of Commissioners on June 11, 2009; and 
 

WHEREAS, in following with the current procedures, regulations and policies, changes 
within the Ordinances have been recommended; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 
TOWN OF MONTREAT, that the Montreat General Ordinances be amended as follows:   
 
 Section II. Administration and Procedures.  

(4)(b) Front Yard Setback Reduction. Owners of previously-platted smaller parcels defined 
as 0.30 acre or less with an existing grade of forty percent (40%) or greater may request up 
to a fifty percent (50%) reduction in the required front yard building setback for the 
associated Zoning District. Requests will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis, and 
permission must be evidenced by written approval bearing signatures of both the Zoning 
and Town Administrators.  

 
 
READ, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED, this the 11th day of February, 2016. 
 
 
      ______________________________ 
      Tim Helms, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
I hereby certify this is a true and correct copy of this Ordinance, duly adopted by the Town of 
Montreat on the 11th day of February, 2016 as it appears of record in the official minutes. 
 
 
______________________________  
Angela Murphy 
Town Clerk 

Packet Page 45

http://www.townofmontreat.org/�


TOWN OF MONTREAT 
 

P. O. Box 423 
Montreat, NC 28757 

Tel: (828)669-8002   Fax: (828)669-3810 
www.townofmontreat.org 

 
ORDINANCE #16-02-0002 TO AMEND 

MONTREAT ZONING ORDINANCE ARTICLE VI
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Montreat Zoning Ordinance was adopted by the Board of 
Commissioners of the Town of Montreat, North Carolina on October 14, 1999 and amended on 
several occasions since the date of its adoption; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in following with the current procedures, regulations and policies, changes 
within the Ordinances have been recommended; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Montreat Planning and Zoning Commission has reviewed the proposed 
revisions and presented to the Board of Commissioners its recommendation that the suggested 
amendments are consistent with the Town’s adopted land use policies; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners concludes that the proposed ordinance 

amendments necessary in order to support the policies embodied in the Town of Montreat 
Comprehensive Plan; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 
TOWN OF MONTREAT, that the Montreat Zoning Ordinance be amended as follows, such 
amendments to become effective upon the date of their adoption: 
 
 
 612.4 Accessibility Features Reasonable Accommodation

1)  The proposed accessibility improvements shall be demonstrated to be the least 
possible modification of the setback(s) that provides “reasonable accommodations” 
within the zoning ordinance to avoid discrimination against individuals with 
disabilities.  

. In addition to meeting the general 
requirements of Section 612.1, a property owner may request approval to erect or install 
accessibility features within the required yard setback, subject to meeting all the following 
conditions:  

2)  Expansion of, or addition to, decks and other appurtenant structures beyond what is 
deemed necessary by the Zoning Official to provide reasonable accommodation for 
accessibility shall not be permitted.  

3)  Accessibility improvements designed and sited to occupy a portion of street right-of-
way fronting the property served are also subject to review for Administrative 
Approval by the Zoning Official and Town Administrator prior to application for the 
associated construction permits.  

4) The applicant must provide the minimum documentation in accordance with U.S. 
Department of Justice guidelines under the Fair Housing Act, which verifies the 

Packet Page 46

http://www.townofmontreat.org/�


Ordinance 13-09-0001 
Page 2 

 
 

associated disability or medical condition(s) justify the need to modify provisions of 
the zoning ordinance.  

5)  The applicant may apply for a conditional use permit if requesting reasonable   
accommodation for individuals with disabilities

 
.  

 
READ, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED, this the 11th day of February, 2016. 
 
 
 
      ______________________________ 
      Tim Helms, Mayor 
 
       
ATTEST: 
 
I hereby certify this is a true and correct copy of this Ordinance, duly adopted by the Town of 
Montreat on the 11th day of February, 2016 as it appears of record in the official minutes. 
 
 
______________________________  
Angela Murphy 
Town Clerk 

Packet Page 47



 
 

TOWN OF MONTREAT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Meeting Date:  February 11, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:
 

  Lookout Road Area - Preliminary Utility Service Plan 

 
AGENDA INFORMATION: 

Agenda Location: New Business 
Item Number: A 
Department:  Public Works 
Contact:  Steve Freeman, Public Works Director  
Presenter:  Steve Freeman, Public Works Director 
 
BRIEF SUMMARY:

 

  In April 2015, the Board of Commissioners agreed to complete a utility 
service plan for the Oklahoma Road and Lookout Road area.  At that time, McGill Associates 
submitted a proposal in the amount of $8,500 for conceptual planning and budget estimating to 
extend public utilities and street improvements to this area.  It is anticipated that these extensions 
would be undertaken as phased public assessment projects, similar to those in the Upper 
Kentucky Road area.   

RECOMMENDED MOTION AND REQUESTED ACTIONS:

 

  To approve a contract for 
preliminary utility service and engineering planning with McGill Associates in the amount of 
$8,500 and to authorize the Mayor and Town Administrator to execute the necessary contract 
documents. 

FUNDING SOURCE:
 

  Public Works - Capital Outlay 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

  McGill Associates Contract Proposal, Area Map, and Lot Ownership Map 

ADMINISTRATOR’S COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  Although the Town 
has not yet received a petition or written request for public utility or street improvements to this 
area, Town staff feels that such a request is very likely in the near future.  The cost of the 
extensions would initially be financed by the Town, and reimbursed over a ten-year period 
through annual payments from benefitted lot owners.   

Packet Page 48



 

55 Broad Street P.O. Box 2259 ph: 828.252.0575 
Asheville. North Carolina 28801 Asheville, North Carolina 28802 f: 828.252.2518 www.mcgillengineers.com 

January 27, 2016 
 
Mr. Ron Nalley, Town Manager 
Town of Montreat 
Post Office Box 423 
Montreat, North Carolina 28757 
 
      RE: Request for Proposal 
       Conceptual Planning and Budget Estimating 
       Oklahoma Road Area Development 
       Town of Montreat, North Carolina 
 
Dear Ron:   
 
 R.L. Haynes and I appreciated the opportunity to meet with you and Steve Freeman on 
Tuesday, April 14, 2015 to discuss the planning efforts the Town is undertaking in the Oklahoma 
Road area.  It was very helpful for us to meet with you both and we appreciate the background 
information you were able to share with us to assist us with the preparation of this scope of work.   
 
 I have met with our staff internally to develop a proposed scope of work that we believe 
will provide the Town with the information you are looking for.  Specifically, we propose the 
following scope of work: 
 

1. Obtain publicly available GIS based property boundary and topographic information for 
the basis of our evaluation.   

 
2. Develop a conceptual schematic layout of the proposed improvements necessary to 

provide vehicular access and water and sewer utilities to the MRA and other privately 
owned lots generally up-slope from Oklahoma and Lookout Roads.  The sketches will 
clearly indicate any proposed phasing of the project.   

 
3. Based upon these conceptual layouts, prepare cost estimates for the proposed roads and 

water and sewer system extensions, including storm drainage improvements.  Fees for 
professional services will also be estimated.   

 
4. Group the proposed improvements into logical phases (typically by street) in order to 

facilitate the appropriate allocation of costs to the underlying property owners.   
 

5. Identify a list of the anticipated permits that must be obtained for each phase of the 
development as it moves to detailed design.   

 
6. Present the results of our work in letter format to Town Staff.   

 

Packet Page 49



Mr. Ron Nalley, Town Manager 
January 27, 2016 
Page 2 

 We do want to emphasize, as we discussed when we met, that our work will be 
conceptual in nature, suitable for establishing general planning budgets.  More accurate work 
cannot be performed without detailed boundary and topographic information.  For this exercise, 
we plan to utilize publicly available GIS and LIDAR based survey information which has 
limitations in accuracy.  As you know there will remain substantial details to be worked out 
during an actual design process that could result in changes to the conceptual layouts and 
budgets that we prepare as part of this work.   
 
 McGill Associates proposes to provide the above scope of work for a lump sum fee of 
$8,500.00, and proposes completion of the effort within 60 days of the receipt of an executed 
proposal.   
 
 Ron, McGill Associates appreciates this opportunity to present you with this proposal for 
professional engineering services.  If you have any questions about the information contained 
herein, please do not hesitate to call me.   
 
      Sincerely,  
      McGILL ASSOCIATES, P.A. 
 
 
 
      HARRY B. BUCKNER, PE 
      Project Manager 
 
HBB/hbb 
 
cc: Steve Freeman, Director of Public Works, Town of Montreat 
 Mark Cathey, PE, McGill Associates 
 RL Haynes, McGill Associates 

Packet Page 50



Packet Page 51



Packet Page 52



Packet Page 53



TOWN OF MONTREAT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

Meeting Date:  February 11, 2016 
 
 
SUBJECT:
 

  2016-2021 Capital Improvements Plan  

 
AGENDA INFORMATION: 

Agenda Location: New Business 
Item Number: B 
Department:  Administration 
Contact:  Ron Nalley  
Presenter:  Ron Nalley  
 

BRIEF SUMMARY:  At your meeting on February 11th, staff will present a draft of the 
2016-2021 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP).  As a reminder, the CIP is a financial 
planning tool that looks into the future to forecast the Town’s equipment, building and 
infrastructure needs.  Generally speaking, an item is included in the Town’s CIP if it has 
a life expectancy of greater than one year and a value of greater than $5,000.       

RECOMMENDED MOTION AND REQUESTED ACTIONS:

 

  To call for a Public 
Hearing on March 10, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. or as soon thereafter as possible to discuss the 
proposed 2016-2021 Capital Improvements Plan.    

FUNDING SOURCE:
 

  General Fund/Water Fund  

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

  The Draft 2016-2021 Capital Improvement Plan will be distributed 
at your meeting.  

ADMINISTRATOR’S COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:

 

   At your 
meeting in January, I gave a brief presentation about the CIP and to determine if there are 
projects that board members or the public feel need to be added, modified or even deleted 
from the plan.  I plan to do a short presentation at the February meeting.  The Board will 
then have a month to review the CIP and to meet as often as you feel is necessary to 
finalize the plan.  I have asked the Board to schedule a public hearing on the plan for 
March 10 and following the public hearing if you feel it is appropriate consider it for 
adoption.  As always, if you have questions concerning any of the plan or specific 
projects please do not hesitate to see me.        

 
 
 
 
 

Packet Page 54



 

 

TOWN OF MONTREAT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
Meeting Date:  February 11, 2016 

 

SUBJECT:  Street Name Request – Covenant Lane 

 

AGENDA INFORMATION: 
 

Agenda Location: New Business 

Item Number: C 

Department:  Administration 

Contact:  Ron Nalley, Town Administrator  

Presenter:  Ron Nalley, Town Administrator 

 

BRIEF SUMMARY:  Montreat has had a street naming process in place for many years with names 

being historically taken from Synods and Presbyteries.  Buncombe County passed an Ordinance 

that states if a street name is already in use somewhere else in the County that it will not be 

allowed as a new street name.  For example, last year Whitewater Cove Road and New Hope 

Lane were chosen as new street names in Montreat; while Whitewater Cove Road was accepted, 

New Hope Lane already existed elsewhere in the County and was rejected.  Because New Hope 

Lane was rejected, a new name has now been suggested for that road – Covenant Lane.  

RECOMMENDED MOTION AND REQUESTED ACTIONS:  To approve Covenant Lane 

as the street name for the street extension of Upper Kentucky Road.   

 

FUNDING SOURCE:  None 

 

ATTACHMENTS:   List of Synods and Presbyteries; Buncombe County Street Names and 

Street Addresses Ordinance 

 

ADMINISTRATOR’S COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  The Eckard family, 

who owns the majority of the lots along this street, had originally suggested four names:  New 

Hope Lane; Grace Lane; Living Waters Way and Covenant Lane.  Unfortunately, New Hope 

Lane, Grace Lane, and Living Waters Way were all rejected by Buncombe County.  Because 

Covenant Lane is the last of their original request, staff has brought only one street name for 

your consideration.  If you would prefer an alternative, staff will need to check those with 

Buncombe County prior to Board approval. 

Packet Page 55



Packet Page 56



Packet Page 57



Packet Page 58



Packet Page 59



Packet Page 60


	DRAFT_02042016_BOC_Agenda2
	REQUEST_MGO_Ch_K_Article_IV_Public_Hearing_02112016
	UAGENDA INFORMATIONU:
	Contact:  David Currie

	REQUEST_MZO_Article_VI_Public_Hearing_02112016
	UAGENDA INFORMATIONU:
	Contact:  David Currie

	DRAFT_01072016_BOC_Agenda_Meeting_Minutes
	UBoard members presentU: Mayor Tim Helms
	Mayor Pro Tem Kitty Fouche
	Commissioner Bill Gilliland
	UAgenda Approval
	Mayor Helms welcomed everyone to the meeting and asked if there were any changes to the agenda.  Commissioner Standaert requested Staff contact Matt Ashley about attending a future meeting to provide an update on the Metropolitan Sewerage District Boa...
	UMayor’s Communications
	Mayor Helms again welcomed Commissioner Fouche and Commissioner Gilliland and thanked Mr. Nalley for assisting them with some basic orientation.
	UConsent Agenda Review
	The proposed Consent Agenda will include the following items:
	UAdministrative Reports
	UPublic Comment – Agenda Items
	Mayor Helms reiterated that this Public Comment period was intended for remarks pertaining to items listed on the meeting agenda, including staff reports and communications.
	There were no comments from the public at this time.
	UOld Business
	UNew Business
	C. UAppoint a Primary Delegate and an Alternate Delegate to the Land of Sky Regional Council:  U  In response to a question from Commissioner Standaert, Mr. Nalley stated that the Land of Sky Regional Council preferred that the delegate be an elected ...
	D. UTown Services Building Roof Repair:U  Mr. Nalley explained that the roof at the Town Services Building has developed a bad leak, and while patched several times, is at the point where a new roof is needed.  Mr. Nalley advised that the bid in quest...
	E. UVacancy on Town Council:U  Commissioner Vinson referenced Rule Number 30 in the Council’s Rules and Procedures which states the Council needs to nominate, debate and appoint a replacement for the vacant seat on the Board and feels that the wording...
	UPublic Comment – Other Topics
	Mayor Helms reiterated that this Public Comment period was intended for remarks pertaining to public business items not listed on the meeting agenda, including any reports or communications from other community entities.
	Philip Arnold of 530 Magill Drive implored the new Council to do better than the US Congress.  He asked the Council to listen to their conscious, utilize judgment, and do their homework with regards to decisions made on behalf of Montreat.
	UCommissioner Communications
	UUpcoming Meeting Dates
	Mayor Helms will review the following list of upcoming meeting dates and deadlines next week.
	UClosed Session
	Commissioner Vinson moved to enter into Closed Session in accordance with North Carolina General Statute §143-318.11(3) for attorney consultation regarding the Civil Action: Carolyn Zoe Crowder, John L. Currie, Nancy B. Thomas, Henry W. Darden, Jr., a...
	Upon a motion by Commissioner Vinson and a second by Commissioner Gilliland with the motion carrying 4/0, the Board returned to Open Session at 8:28 p.m. No action was taken during the Closed Session.
	UAdjournment

	DRAFT_01142016_BOC_Meeting_Minutes2
	UBoard members presentU: Mayor Tim Helms
	UAgenda Approval
	Mayor Helms asked if there were any changes to the agenda.  Mayor Pro Tem Fouche moved that the person to be selected to fill the Vacancy on Town Council must be selected by a majority vote, and if the first ballot does not result in a majority, that ...
	UPresentation to Council
	UMetropolitan Sewerage District Update:U  Matt Ashley, Montreat’s Representative to the Metropolitan Sewerage District (MSD) Board presented an overview of the scope of MSD’s operations and what it means to the Town.   MSD was created and established ...
	The District owns, operates and maintains a 40 million gallon per day (MGD) wastewater treatment plant to treat raw sewage and industrial wastewaters collected in an extensive network  of collector sewers currently owned, operated and maintained by t...
	In the presentation Mr. Ashley discussed MSD’s Capital Improvement Plan and in response to a question from Commissioner Standaert pointed out that there is a projected 2.5% increase on sewerage rates per year for the next ten years.  Mr. Ashley stated...
	U2016-2021 Capital Improvement Plan Overview:U  Mr. Nalley gave a brief introductory presentation on the 2016-2021 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), a flexible financial planning tool used to forecast the Town’s future equipment, building and infrastruc...
	UMayor’s Communications
	Mayor Helms announced that there would be no sanitation services on Monday, January 18, 2016 due to the Martin Luther King Jr. Holiday but will resume on the following day.  He also advised that the Town sanitation truck is currently out of service so...
	UConsent Agenda Review
	UTown Administrator’s Communications
	UAdministrative Reports
	UPublic CommentsU
	Mayor Helms reiterated that this Public Comment period was intended for remarks pertaining to items listed on the meeting agenda, including staff reports and communications.
	Mr. Wade Burns of 232 North Carolina Terrace suggested making the dumpster available for the residents of the Town to bring their own trash on the Tuesday after Martin Luther King Jr. Holiday thereby reducing the workload for the Public Works Departme...
	UOld Business
	UNew Business
	UUpcoming Meeting Dates
	Mayor Helms reviewed the following list of upcoming meeting dates and deadlines:
	UAdjournment

	REQUEST_Reappt_Arnold_to_Audit_Committee_02112016
	UAGENDA INFORMATIONU:
	Contact:   Stefan Stackhouse, Finance Officer

	January 2016 MPD Status Report
	201512 BudgettoActual
	Dec 15 final detail
	Building & Zoning
	Ordinance_16-02-0001_Amending_Chapter_K_Article_IV_Hillside_Development
	Ordinance_16-02-0002_Amending_MZO_Article_VI
	REQUEST_Lookout_Road_Utility_Service_Plan_02112016 (2)
	UAGENDA INFORMATION:
	Contact:  Steve Freeman, Public Works Director

	rn27jan2016-Oklahoma Rd Preliminary Engineering
	Lookout Road Utility Plan Information
	Request - CIP Public Hearing Request 02112016
	USUBJECT:U  2016-2021 Capital Improvements Plan
	UAGENDA INFORMATION:
	Contact:  Ron Nalley

	REQUEST_Street_Name_Request_Covenant_Lane_02112016
	Street Naming Attachments

	Button1: 


